BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW BOARD

TUESDAY, 30TH MARCH 2010 AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors S. R. Colella (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-Chairman),

Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, Mrs. C. J. Spencer and L. J. Turner

Observers: Councillor Mrs. M. A. Sherrey JP

Officers: Mr. H. Bennett, Mr. M. Carr and Ms. A. Scarce

59/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor D. L. Pardoe and the Board. The Chairman requested that the Board's good wishes for a speedy recovery be sent.

60/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS

Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker declared a personal interest in Minute No. 65/09 (Overview and Scrutiny Proposal Form, Railway Station Development) in her role as County Councillor.

Councillor Mrs. C. J. Spencer declared a personal interest in Minute No. 65/09 (Overview and Scrutiny Proposal Form, Railway Station Development) in her role as Ward Member.

61/09 **MINUTES**

The minutes of the meeting of the Overview Board held on 2nd March 2010 were submitted.

RESOLVED that the minutes be confirmed as a correct record.

62/09 CABINET RESPONSE TO THE OLDER PEOPLE'S TASK GROUP

The Chairman thanked Councillor Mrs. M. Sherrey, Portfolio Holder for Children and Young People, Older People and the Vulnerable for attending the meeting in order to present the Recommendations agreed by Cabinet on 3rd March 2010, to the Overview Board. The Portfolio Holder for Children and Young People, Older People and the Vulnerable thanked the Task Group for the hard work that had been involved in preparing the report which contained achievable recommendations. The Board discussed the Cabinet Response in detail. The Portfolio Holder for Children and Young People, Older People and the Vulnerable, together with the Director of Policy, Performance and

Overview Board 30th March 2010

Partnership provided updates on several recommendations and the Board made the following comments:

- Recommendation 1(a) UK Older People's Day The Member/officer working group would be set up in early April 2010 by the Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships, in preparation for UK Older People's Day which would be held in October 2010.
- Recommendation 2 Free Swimming at the Dolphin Centre the Scrutiny Officer was asked to check with the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services as to when work would commence on the funding bid.
- Recommendation 3 Gym Facilities at the Dolphin Centre the Scrutiny Officer was asked to contact the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services for confirmation of the implementation date.
- Recommendation 4 Community Transport Services (BURT) & Recommendation 5 The Trunk – The Head of Community Services now had responsibility for these items.
- Recommendation 6 Older People's Strategy for Worcestershire After discussion it was agreed that there would be some slippage on this item and the implementation date was moved to June 2010. It was agreed that when the draft Strategy goes out to consultation, it would be brought before the Overview Board to provide the Council's response.
- Recommendation 7 Mapping Exercise This would be picked up by the working group as detailed at Recommendation 1.
- Recommendation 8 Older People's A-Z Directory Funding had been agreed for this project and the Directory would be launched at an Older People's Day event in October 2010.
- Recommendation 9(b) Information Management This would be picked up when the new Head of Customer Service was appointed.
- Recommendation 10 Older People's Champions Further research on funding of this item would be undertaken and then go live in October 2011. Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships would be the lead officer.
- Recommendations 11 and 12 Older People's Housing Strategy for Worcestershire and Housing – It was agreed the Scrutiny Officer would check the implementation dates with the Lead Officer, the Strategic Housing Manager.
- Recommendation 13 Lifeline This item was discussed in detail and Members were advised that information on the Performance Indicator for this was provided to the Performance Management Board on a regular basis.
- Recommendation 14 Benefit Service The Mosaic would be used to target specific segments of the population and information on the Benefits Service would also be included in the Older People's A-Z Directory.
- Recommendation 15 Employment The implementation date was confirmed as March 2012.
- Recommendation 16 Adult Learning Opportunities Information would be provided in the Older People's A-Z Directory.

- Recommendation 17 Funding Opportunities Members recognised the difficulties facing the Council in the current financial climate.
- Recommendation 18 Worcestershire County Council Highways Department – Officers to establish if Councillor Mrs. R. L. Dent is still an active Member on the Highways Partnership Forum and if so, obtain background information from her.
- Recommendation 19 Future Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships would be the lead officer on this item.
- Recommendation 20 Older People's Strategy for Worcestershire, Phase 2 – it was confirmed that there was no Levels 3, 4, and 5 in the new draft Strategy.

63/09 VERBAL UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT IN LOCAL DEMOCRACY TASK GROUP (TASK GROUP CHAIRMAN: COUNCILLOR L. J. TURNER)

The Chairman of the Community Involvement in Local Democracy Task Group advised Members that the Task Group had held a further 3 meetings and the following witnesses had been questioned:

- Parish Council Chairman
- Representatives from the Artrix Centre
- Portfolio Holder for Resources
- A representative from County Council Extended Services
- County Council Citizens Advisor
- Portfolio Holder for One Community

It was anticipated that the draft report would be presented to the Task Group at a final meeting in mid April and then brought before the Overview Board at the meeting to be held on 27th April 2010.

The Board discussed the areas covered by the Task Group and possible outcomes from it. Members thanked the Chairman for the comprehensive update.

64/09 FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

The Board considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1st April to 31st July 2010 and noted that item 23, Benefit Take-Up Strategy would link in to Recommendation 14 of the Older People's Task Group. Members also discussed item 8, Write-Off - Housing Benefit.

65/09 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PROPOSAL - RAILWAY STATION DEVELOPMENT (COUNCILLOR MRS. J. M. L. A. GRIFFITHS)

The Board considered the report relating to an Overview and Scrutiny Proposal on the Railway Station Development, completed by Councillor Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths. Members noted that a major concern in respect of the development would be neighbourhood car parking.

Overview Board 30th March 2010

The Director for Policy, Performance and Partnerships advised that the Executive Director for Planning and Regeneration, Housing Services had recently attended a meeting which had provided an update on the current position of the development. Members discussed this in detail and were concerned that a further delay was likely due to a funding shortfall. Members agreed that this matter was of high priority and after discussion it was

RESOLVED that Officers arrange for a relevant representative from the County Council and Network Rail to be invited to attend the next Overview Board meeting to be held on 27th April 2010, together with relevant County Councillors and the Executive Director for Planning and Regeneration, Housing Services in order for the Board to establish the current position and before deciding whether or not further investigation is required.

66/09 WORK PROGRAMME

The Board considered the Work Programme and noted that due to staff changes, Members were advised that the implementation of the Civil Parking Enforcement proposals item on the work programme may be delayed pending the outcome of negotiations between the Council and the County Council.

RESOLVED that the Overview Board Work Programme be noted.

The meeting closed at 7.50 p.m.

Chairman